ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COMM TTEE
January 25, 2001
1:12 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Vic Kohring, Chair
Representative Beverly Masek, Vice Chair
Representative Scott Ogan

Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Al bert Kookesh

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Drew Scal zi
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senat or Drue Pearce

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 8
"An Act establishing the Legislative Road Developnent Task
Force; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 8(TRA) OUT OF COWMM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 55

"An Act regarding oil discharge prevention and cleanup invol ving
sel f-propell ed nontank vessels exceeding 400 gross registered
tonnage and railroad tank cars and related facilities and
operations and requiring preparation and inplenentation of oil
di scharge contingency plans for those nontank vessels and
rail road tank cars; anending the definition of 'response action'
that relates to releases or threatened releases of oil and
thereby anending the duties and liabilities of response action
contractors; authorizing conpliance verification for nontank
vessels and for trains and related facilities and operations;
and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- January 25, 2001



BILL: HB 8
SHORT TI TLE: LEG S. Pl ONEER ROAD DEVELOPMENT TASK FORCE
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) ROKEBERG

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 08/ 01 0025 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 29/ 00

01/ 08/ 01 0025 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 08/ 01 0026 (H) TRA, FIN

01/ 25/ 01 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 55

SHORT TITLE: O L DI SCH PREVENTI ON:  NONTANK VESSELS
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/12/01 0070 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 12/ 01 0071 (H TRA, RES, FIN

01/ 23/ 01 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 23/ 01 (H Heard & Held

01/ 23/ 01 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

01/ 25/ 01 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPITOL 1

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE NORMAN ROKEBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Capitol Building, Room 118

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 8.

AMY DAUGHERTY, Lobbyi st

for Al aska Professional Design Council

327 West Eleventh Street, Nunmber 2

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expressed the Al aska Professional Design
Council's support of HB 8 contingent upon there being a civil
engi neer on the task force established by the |egislation.

THOVAS B. BRI GHAM Pl anning Director

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

3132 Channel Drive

Juneau, Al aska 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed the agency's wllingness to work
with a task force like that established by HB 8.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- January 25, 2001



ROGER WEBER
(No address provi ded)
Bel uga, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed interest in road buil ding.

HAROLD NEWCOVB
P. O Box 870237
Wasilla, Al aska 99687

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 8.

TOM RUETER

Northstar Maritime Agencies
790 Ccean Dock Road,

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 55.

STEPHANI E MADSEN, Vi ce President
Paci fi c Seaf ood Processors Associ ati on
213 Third Street

Juneau, Al aska, 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 55.

JEFF THOWPSON, Al aska Maritine Agencies
4341 B Street, Nunber 101
Anchor age, Al aska 99502

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 55.

JCE LEBEAU

Al aska Center for the Environnment

641 South Al aska, Suite 201

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 55.

BRECK TOSTEVI N, Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Envi ronnental Section, Departnent of Law
Civil Division (Anchorage)

1031 West Fourth Avenue, Suite 200

Anchor age, Al aska 99501-1994

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on
|l etter of intent and regul ations.

BRI AN ROGERS

I nformation Insights, Inc.

751 A d R chardson Hi ghway, Nunmber 235
Fai r banks, Al aska 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 55.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3-

HB 55 related to

January 25, 2001



LARRY DI ETRI CH, Director

Division of Spill Prevention and Response
Departnent of Environnental Conservation
410 W11 oughby Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1795

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 55.

PAUL FUHS, WMarine Technical Consultant
Contract or

Task Force on Motorized G| Transport
1635 Sitka, Nunber 301

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 55.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-5, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIRVAN VIC KOHRING called the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:12 pm Menbers present at the
call to order were Representatives Kohring, Ogan, W] son, Masek,
Kapsner, and Kookesh. Representative Scal zi was absent.

CHAIR KOHRING informed the commttee that he was appointing
Representative Masek to serve as Vice Chair of the House
Transportation Standing Commttee.

HB 8 - LEG SLATI VE ROAD DEVELOPMENT TASK FORCE

CHAI R KOHRI NG announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 8, "An Act establishing the Legislative Road
Devel opment Task Force; and providing for an effective date.”

Number 0112

REPRESENTATI VE  NORMAN  RCKEBERG Al aska State Legislature,
sponsor of HB 8, explained that he had introduced [simlar]
| egislation at the end of the |last session in order to highlight
that the state has done Ilittle or no road building or
devel opnment, particularly in the rural areas, in the past three
decades. The amount of roads built during the past 30 years has
been mi ni mal . This cane to his attention, he said, "when the
Whittier tunnel was opened |ast year, [when the state] basically
built a couple mles of road and paved underneath the tunnel
system to open up that particular whole access to the Prince

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- January 25, 2001



WIlliam Sound area.” In addition, he said, there was a five- or
six-mile road built in Southeastern [Al aska] at Kasaan. Anot her
project was the Skagway International H ghway to Witehorse,
Yukon Territory, that was done in the late 1970s under
i nternational funding. Those add up to about 20 road mles
(plus the Skagway road), and were the only truly new roads that
have opened up territory in Alaska in the last 30 years, he
said. The last major highway opening was the Parks H ghway from
Wasilla to Fairbanks in 1971.

Number 0284
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he thinks that is a crinme "because,

clearly, our vast state with its huge storehouse of natural
resources just begs to be made available for exploitation and

exploration.” He expressed his belief that developnent in the
rural areas of Alaska cannot take place w thout adequate
transportation systens. He said he believes that Alaska is
truly a natural -resource-extraction type of state. "That is our
fundanmental grounds for econom c devel opnent,” he said. "To
create a nore prosperous state, to provide jobs -- and well-
paying jobs -- we need to be able to open up and devel op sone of
our lands."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG enphasi zed that the state has bountiful
natural resources, and he said he finds it sonmewhat ironic "at
the sane tine that the prior federal admnistration has closed
down the Tongass National Forest and inplenented their roadless
policies here, that I"'mcomng to the legislature to try to re-
ignite sonething that used to be done years ago. Wen | grew up

in this state, we had the old Al aska Road Comm ssion,"” he
recal | ed. "We were punching trails and gravel roads all over
the state trying to open up the land.” But so little road

buil ding has been done in recent years that he is introducing
the idea of a task force.

Nunmber 0436

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that for mininmal cost, a $9,000
fiscal note, he wants to bring together people from throughout
the state and generate interest. He proposed that the task
force ook at existing plans that have been studied over the
years by the Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

(DOT&PF), but on which there has been no action. "It's tine
that we | ook at these projects that we know are basically needed
and prioritize them" he said. He noted his intention is to

el evate public attention to this situation so the |egislature

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- January 25, 2001



can elevate the capital spending and allocation of funds to
these areas. He said he thinks this is a propitious nmonent with
Al aska's Congressman Don Young chairing the federal House
Transportation Committee. "He's going to have significant
access to additional funding," Representative Rokeberg said.
"I't's ny understanding that federal highway dollars can be used
for non-hi ghway-type projects, in other words, for gravel roads
that meet certain standards. I think we need to revisit that,
and that is the intention of this particular task force."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he thinks the task force can and
should work very closely with DOT&PF, but ultimtely should cone
back with a report to the legislature with a prioritized Iist of
roads and recomendati ons for some new road devel opnent.

Nunber 0571

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG then referred to the list of roads in
the bill. He said the first one is the WIlianmsport Road from
Pile Bay to Iliama Bay. A nunber of fishernen put their
vessels on flatbed trucks and haul them on the WIIliansport Road
to Lake Iliama, from which they can go down to the Bristol Bay
commercial fisheries. The road is barely nmaintained by a
private-sector group, he said. Modest anounts of noney have

been invested by the state in the past on this roadway, which
needs to be upgraded so it isn't a safety hazard for these
people to use. Al so, he said, delivery of freight and other
commodities into that area could be enhanced.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG infornmed the comrmittee that the second
road on the list is in the Pogo Mne area, where there is a
"highly feasible mneral deposit" that needs a road. That is
just the tip of the iceberg, he said, regarding the ways and
pl aces where roads can open up the rural areas of the state.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG then referred to a letter he had
received from the Alaska Mners Association asking for the
addition of a road from the Dalton H ghway west to the Anbler
copper district. This roadway would open up the entire
nort hwest part of the state. He said he thinks there should be
a catchall category in which to list any other road the task
force thinks merits review, so that the list they are review ng
IS not exclusionary.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said there has been sone confusion, on

the part of the public, about his intent regarding the work of
the task force. "I"ve always thought of it as a pioneer road

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- January 25, 2001



task force,"” he said. Then soneone had asked him to add the
proposed Lynn Canal road from Juneau to Skagway on the list. He
said he is unconfortable with that idea because that is a highly
controversial, major highway.

Nunmber 0828

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ained that he does not intend to
"reinvent the wheel" and insert the legislature in the planning
process of the DOT&PF on major highway projects. "What | want
to do is have a task force get behind particular projects and
get some notion going on things that presumably would be |ess
controversial," except to the environnental comunity, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBURG suggested that the commttee insert the
word "pioneer"” between "Legislative® and "road" on the first
page of the bill, so it would read, "the Legislative Pioneer
Road Task Force."™ In its present iteration, the legislation is
supported by Teansters Local 959, the Alaska M ners Association

and the Associ ation of General Contractors, he said.

Number 0914

REPRESENTATI VE  OGAN suggested sinply funding the House
Transportation Standing Committee a $9,000 budget, and said,

"Let's do it." He said he has seen a lot of task forces cone
and go, and that for the nost part, their studies sit on a shelf
and gather dust. He expressed concern about being so far
behi nd, unable to go from one side of the [Matanuska] Valley to
the other in his district. "It's just alnbst an intolerable
situation,"” he said. Fai rbanks has four |anes and overpasses
and bypasses [while] "we've been promsed a four-lane through
Wasilla for a decade... and we aren't even crack-sealing the
roads we have." He said he is "all for what Representative

Rokeberg is trying to do in the philosophy here, but it mght be
better directed to do it at a time when we have an
adm nistration that mght be actually receptive to even | ooking

at these things, because ... | think we all know what the
Know es Administration will do with this...."
Nunber 1046

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d al t hough he appreci at ed
Representative Qgan's frustration, the point of this particular
bill is not to inprove or mintain existing roads, but to
devel op new ones. The legislature has the power to appropriate,
and he believes that the legislature is not exercising its

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- January 25, 2001



representation of the people by exercising the purse strings.
"I think the legislature should have a greater anpunt of inpact
on the priority of what projects are done in this state,” he
sai d.

Nunber 1132

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it is certainly up to the finance
commttees to make the decisions about what is done with the
limted funds avail able. "However," he enphasized, "I truly
believe that in the next six years, ... we're going to have
additional road nonies comng from the federal governnent. :
| think because of [Congressman] Young's position that we're

going to have substantially nore noney, and | think it's past
due tinme that we open up sone country to create sone jobs and
sonme developnment in this state. This state's been in a big

| ockup, in ny opinion."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG then addressed Representative QOgan's
suggestion about giving the noney to the House Transportation
Standing Commttee and having it do the work. He said that the
intention of the task force, as is apparent from its suggested
makeup, 1Is to go out into the public and build a ... public
constituency and raise the |evel of discussion about the issue
t hroughout the state. He expressed the need to nmake a policy
decision that "the rural areas of the state need to be devel oped
and we need to punch some roads in there.” There have been
peopl e out there for decades asking for funding, with very good
argunents for projects, and they are not being heard, he
concl uded.

Nunmber 1248
REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he has the sanme concern about buil ding

new projects |like these roads as he does with sone of the "well -
meani ng but somewhat msdirected idea of elimnating the honey

bucket . " Wi |l e acknow edging the need for good sanitation and
clean water, he raised the question of who is going to pay for
mai ntai ning those new facilities in the future. He reiterated

that the state is not maintaining existing roads by crack-
seal ing them

Nunber 1302

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG renarked, "You don't need to crack-sea
a gravel road."

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- January 25, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE OGAN replied that one has to grade a gravel road,
and it costs nore to maintain a gravel road than it does a paved
one.

Number 1324

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said his point was that people are
asking for diversity in the econony, getting away from oi

devel opnent . "I'f you want true economc developnent in this
state,” he said, "you have to open up the land, you have to
people the land, you have to give title to the |Iand. And

there's plenty of private land in the rural areas of our state
that needs to be developed and could be developed if we could
get to it with a transportation system that is cost-effective.”
Al t hough Representative Ogan mght be right about the |evel of
mai nt enance costs, he said, the way to pay for maintenance is to
i nprove the econony. "You develop this state and you generate
busi ness and they pay taxes for those roads,"” he added.

Nunmber 1393

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH reminded his "good friend from the
Val l ey" that there have been sone Republican governors since
1971, and no roads were built wunder those adm nistrations,
ei t her. The |legislature has been cutting budgets the |ast
couple of years, he noted, and that may have sonething to do
with why sone roads are not being kept up. House Bill 8 brings
attention where it needs to be brought, he concluded, "and
maybe we'll get sonething happening.” He said he is very
supportive of that intent.

Nunber 1458

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG thanked Representative Kookesh and
affirmed that his intent is, indeed, to raise the |evel of
di scussi on about this issue.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN pointed out for the record that the |ast
governor to try to upgrade a road was Governor Wlter Hickel
who attenpted to conplete the road to Cordova.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that the Cordova road is on the
task force list, and said, "W can still keep trying."

Nunber 1581

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- January 25, 2001



AMY DAUGHERTY, Lobbyist for the Alaska Professional Design
Council, cane forward to testify. She noted that the
organi zation's nenbers include civil engineers and architects.
She said the Alaska Professional Design Council supports HB 8
contingent upon there being a civil engineer on the task force.

Nunber 1622

THOVAS B. BRI GHAM Pl anni ng Director, Depart ment of
Transportation and Public Facilities, noted that DOT&PF
participated in cormmttee neetings |ast year when the subject of
HB 8 was being discussed and that the agency would be happy to
participate in such a task force if it were set up. Sone of the
roads on the |ist are ones the agency has been studying in the
context of regional plans, he said. Sonme of the projects are of

guestionabl e cost benefit, "which gets to Representative Ogan's
point that the real issue beconmes what's the nost inportant
thing to spend what noney we have on," he acknow edged. He

closed by reiterating that DOT&PF would be happy to work with
such a task force.

Number 1654

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked how much influence a task force |ike
this would have on decision-maki ng processes in DOT&PF. "\Wer e
does the rubber hit the road on this thing?" he asked.

MR BRIGHAM said he thinks the influence depends on "how it
unfolds and the quality of the work that's done.™

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked M. Brigham to identify which of the
projects al ready are being considered by DOT&PF.

Nunber 1687

MR BRIGHAM listed the follow ng projects: the WIIlianmsport
Road from Iliamma to Pile Bay, a road to Cordova, the Donlin
Creek Road, upgrading the Dalton H ghway, a road from Ranpart to
Eureka, a road from Ruby to MGath, a road from Ruby to
Takotna, and a road from Takotna Flat to Crooked Creek.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked about the location and |ength of the
Donlin Creek road.

MR. BRIGHAM replied it would go from the Kuskokwim R ver to the

m ne, about 15-20 m | es. He added that the Bureau of Indian
Affairs "has taken the earmark that was provided by Congress for

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- January 25, 2001



that road and is in the process of doing project devel opnent on
it."

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked M. Brigham whether he thought it
woul d be helpful in getting funds for sone of the projects if
the task force provided a prioritized list and the |egislature
passed a resol ution to Congr essman Young' s [ House]
Transportation Commttee.

Nunber 1778

MR. BRI GHAM said he thought it would be very hel pful. "Needless
to say, we don't have a pot of noney |lying around unused,"” he
said, "and in order to deal wth the needs we have on the

current roadway system and afford to build any of these new
roads, which tend to be expensive, that is certainly one
approach I think would be hel pful."

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked if M. Brigham had any ideas about
creative funding to help with maintenance, for exanple, sone way
in which "soneone |ike the mne mght enter into it."

MR. BRIGHAM agreed that was a possibility, and that DOT&PF
"would be some @ of the nost ent husi asti c proponents, "
particularly of new approaches to nmintaining pieces of road
that are self-contained and off the road system If the
principal user is a mne, it wuld nmake a |ot of sense to enter
into a maintenance agreenent with the mne before the road is
actual ly constructed, he said.

Nunmber 1855

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked if the sponsor of the bill mght be
interested in inserting |anguage regarding the task force
| ooking into creative ways of maintaining sone of the roads that
m ght be built.

Nunmber 1925

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK asked if DOI&F has feasibility studies
t hat have been conpleted on the eight projects he had |isted.

MR. BRIGHAM said virtually all of the projects are contained in
one or another of the agency's area plans. Many of them are in
the Northwest Transportation Plan. He nentioned the road from
Ruby to McGrath as an exanpl e.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- January 25, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE MASEK asked if he had a conplete listing, if the
studies were available, and if it would be feasible for the
state to start these projects, acknow edging that "it all cones
back to noney."

MR. BRIGHAM replied, "Absolutely. It's a challenge.” He said
an exanple would be the road from WIIlianmsport to Pile Bay,
which the agency examined as part of the  Sout hwest
Transportation Pl an. That project is recomended in the plan

he sai d. "We believe it's sonmething that should be done, and
for many of the sane reasons that [Representative Rokeber(g]
indicated." The road perfornms a function, and its use could be
expanded if it were inproved. "Part of that road is literally
carved out of a cliff side, and it's not very wde," he
testified. Inmproving it would be expensive, and even wth
additional traffic, the use would be I|ight. So the issue is

whether the project is sufficiently inportant to commt to
spendi ng $20-40 mllion. Because nost of these [pioneer roads]
are new roads or substantial upgrades, nost of them cone with a
fairly steep price tag, he explained. The departnment [ DOT&PF]
is not opposed to road construction, "but its a real question
[of] how to get the best service fromthe noney we ... have."

Number 2049

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK expressed concern about access in the
Mat anuska Susitna area. She recalled that when the Mller's
Reach fire spread out of control, the Parks H ghway had to be
closed, leaving many people on the north side unable to reach

Wasi | | a. She also nmentioned Hatcher Pass, which links the
Wllow side to Palner, and said that road is closed except in
cases of energency. Al t hough she acknow edged Representative

Rokeberg's point, she expressed concern about the cost of
mai nt ai ni ng both ol d and new roads.

Number 2161

ROGER WEBER testified by teleconference. He inforned the
commttee that those in Beluga have their own road, which goes
from Bird Muuntain to Sleeping Lady. From Wasilla, there is a
road going to the Little Susitna River and from there to the
Bel uga road system a distance of 45 mles. Beluga is the
| ocation of the Chugach power plant, Phillips Petroleum and
Unocal facilities, and they all have enployees that fly in and
out. N ne mles south of Beluga is the village of Tyonek, which
has a popul ati on of 200. "All of our business is by airplane,
and it seenms like a short distance to open up this area," he

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- January 25, 2001



sai d. "I't would be a trenendous help, and we do have a |arge

popul ation. " He asked "their position” on a Wasilla-to-Tyonek
r oad.
Number 2249

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he knows the area M. Wber
descri bed. He said the intention of HB 8 is to get public
di scussi on about projects |ike that one.

Number 2285
HAROLD NEWCOVB testified by teleconference. He said he is
certainly in favor of such a bill [as HB 8]. Havi ng wat ched

Al aska for nmore than 50 years, he said, it is apparent to him
that road developnent around the state is very inportant to
devel opnment of a sustainable econony. In addition to the
econony, there are energency situations |Ilike fires and
earthquakes in places that would really benefit if there were
road access. Roads would nmake possible a little bit of economc
diversification in renote villages |ike those now suffering from
bad [fish returns]. He said it is inportant to plan these
things properly and set priorities. He said when he drives the
Par ks H ghway, he wonders "why in the world we spent $80 mllion
for a tunnel through [to] Wiittier when we didn't do anything to
speak of to get this traffic under control out here." He said
he al so sees that in Anchorage and in other areas, and thinks it
is time to get serious about the devel opnent of roads around the
state. "I think we should do it now and get those priorities
set and get on with it!" he concl uded.

Nunber 2367

CHAI R KOHRI NG concurred with the testinony that had been given

but said he sonewhat shared Representative QOgan's concerns about
setting up another task force and generating another report. He
said he thinks HB 8 can serve to highlight the problem and that
there is [federal] noney available through Senator Ted Stevens
and Congressnman Don Young.

Nunber 2492
REPRESENTATIVE WLSON offered a conceptual anendnent [to
Amendnment 1, in commttee packets] to add the Bradfield Canal

road, at the southern end of Southeast Al aska. Amrendnent 1
read:

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -13- January 25, 2001



Page 1, lines 1, 6 and 7
I nsert "Pioneer"” between "Legislative" and "Road"

Page 3, after Iline 16, add tw new sections as
fol | ows:

"(23) Road from Dalton H ghway west to the Anbler
copper district;

(24) and any other road the task force feels
merits review

TAPE 01-5, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON explained that the Bradfield Canal road
has been discussed for about ten years, DOI&F had done sone
workups on it, and she didn't want it to fall between the
cracks. It would be a 25-mile road along the Bradfield Canal,
going into British Colunbia and connecting with the Cassiar
Hi ghway.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he had no objection to its being
added to the |ist.

Nunmber 2445

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH i ndi cated he objected to adding a |ist of
speci fic roads. He explained that he had thought the words [in
Amendnent 1] "and any other [road the task force feels nerits
review]" would cover this. He voiced his preference for having
that language as a tool for the task force, rather than "naking
a Christmas tree" out of HB 8.

CHAIR KOHRI NG called for a vote on the anendnent to Amendnent 1
[to add the Bradfield Canal road].

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH expl ained that he was not objecting to
including the Bradfield Canal road in particular, but to all the
other roads the conmttee was starting to add, too. He
specified that he didn't want to include the east Lynn Canal
road, which would be a major highway, not a pioneer road.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that he had ©prepared two
anmendnents, but did not want to offer the one including the east
Lynn Canal hi ghway.

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked whet her the objection was nai ntai ned.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- January 25, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH sai d he had no objection.

CHAIR KOHRI NG announced that there being no objection, the
anendnent to Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Nunber 2305

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked whet her there was any objection to Amendnent
1 [as anended]. There being no objection, Anmendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked Representative Rokeberg to speak to the
proposed letter of intent [in packets].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he would not offer it at this tine.
However, he suggested a conceptual anendnent on page 2, line 21
after the words "those roads", to add sonething to the effect of
"review al ternative funding sources for ongoi ng mai nt enance".

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK nmade a notion to adopt that [as Anendnent
2] .

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked whether there was any objection. There
bei ng no objection, Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

CHAI R KOHRI NG noted that Amendnment 2 was likely in response to
Representative Ogan's concerns. He then said he appreciated the
sponsor's efforts; he hinself had shared Representative Ogan's
concerns about duplicating the efforts of a previous task force
and producing sonething that would collect dust on a shelf. I n
order to follow up on the task force's recomrendati ons, he would
like to see the task force findings brought back to the House
Transportation Standing Committee in January [2002]. Al t hough
Chair Kohring said he was not sure of the need for doing sone of
the tasks that DOT&PF m ght already be doing, he recognized that
the idea is to highlight the issue of expanding the road system
in the state. He added, "If this is one way of doing it, even
if we are duplicating sone efforts, ... if it means nore roads,
then | think it's a worthwhile effort.™

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON nade a notion to nove HB 8, as anended
out of conmttee [with the acconpanying fiscal note]. There
being no objection, CSHB 8(TRA) was noved out of the House
Transportation Standing Commttee.

CHAI R KOHRI NG announced a brief at-ease.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -15- January 25, 2001



HB 55- O L DI SCH PREVENTI ON: NONTANK VESSELS/ RR

Nunber 2182

CHAI R KOHRI NG announced that the next item before the House
Transportation Conmmttee would be HOUSE BILL NO 55, "An Act
regarding oil discharge prevention and cleanup involving self-
propel |l ed nontank vessels exceeding 400 gross regi stered tonnage
and railroad tank cars and related facilities and operations and
requiring preparation and inplenentation of oil discharge
contingency plans for those nontank vessels and railroad tank
cars; anending the definition of 'response action' that relates
to releases or threatened releases of oil and thereby amending
the duties and liabilities of response action contractors;
aut hori zing conpliance verification for nontank vessels and for
trains and related facilities and operations; and providing for
an effective date."

Nunber 2108

TOM RUETER, Northstar Maritinme Agencies, cane forward to
testify. He said Northstar Maritinme Agencies represents various

foreign-flagged vessels operating in the state. He noted that
SB 273, passed |ast session, had established a task force that
wor ked over the sumrer. The shipping industry is diverse;, wth

each of its different conponents having its own concerns, and
the task force gave them a venue to air those concerns.
"Hopefully," he said, "the final report that you see there is a
consensus of that process.” Sonme of the nmain concerns reflected
[in the report] and voiced during the process were the need for
sinplicity, cost awareness, and expediency of plan review when
HB 55 is finally adopted and the regulations following that are

al so adopt ed. He said the task force report is a consensus
docunent, and he recomended, that "the intent of it be adopted
in whole as legislative intent as this bill goes forward."

Number 2060

CHAI R KOHRI NG said, "I keep hearing ... that the private sector
supports this bill and that you guys cane to the table and
actually asked for this bill." He asked M. Rueter if that is

truly how he feels, and if there is any pressure or duress
i nvol ved. As a small businessman hinself, he finds it hard to
under stand why a group would ask for nore regul ati on, he said.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -16- January 25, 2001



MR. RUETER replied that SB 273 provided the requirenent that a
pl anning standard be established and adopted into statute.
"This bill that's presented at this tine is how that statute
that's in force wll be inplenented,” he said. He not ed,
"Through the task force process, many of the concerns of
industry were aired, and, hopefully, addressed, and consensus
reached, and that's reflected wwthin the task force report."

Number 1939

STEPHANI E MADSEN, Vice President, Pacific Seafood Processors
Associ ation, came forward to testify. She said she had been a
menber of the task force and co-chair of the Contingency Plan
Subconmi ttee. She explained that the Pacific Seafood Processors
Associ ati on IS a nenbership organization of shor e- si de
processors, and its involvenent in this bill involves sone of
the larger catcher vessels that operate primarily in the Bering
Sea as well as sone "floater" operations that travel around the
state, usually anchor within state waters, and process a series

of different seafoods. In addition, the organi zation represents
three nother-ship operations, processors with a fleet of catcher
vessels that are all in excess of 400 gross tons. She said in
total, she represents about seven vessels that wll be regul ated
under HB 55.

M5. MADSEN assured the committee that "industry, from our
perspective, is supportive of the final result of the marine
task force's recommendations.” She said there had been concerns

about the speed at which last year's |egislation was noving, and
about Pacific Seafood Processors being a round peg that m ght be
forced to fit into a square hole. She said she thinks "we have
now ki nd of softened those corners of the hole, and we can fit
into the safety net."

Nunber 1862

M5. MADSEN expl ained that the vessels she represents also enter
Washi ngton's waters, and there are simlar regulations in that

state. "As seafood processors, we rely on clean water and a
heal thy resource, so it is inportant to us to nmake sure that we
don't have a Galapagos [oil spill] in the Aleutians,” she

testified. She indicated that she supports all of the prior
testinmony as well as Brian Rogers' recommendation "that the task
force report is the package in total, and that it is very
critical to us to have that intent letter attached to
| egi sl ation, which gives us the confort |evel that was necessary
for us to support the noving of this |egislation; because we

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- January 25, 2001



understand what the details are, we understand what the rules
are, and we were involved in helping fornmulate sone of those to
fit our unique operations.”

Nunber 1820

CHAIR KOHRING said he couldn't help but wonder if "the effort
and the intent ... is to mnimze conpetition from the smaller
operators out there, ... If it's easier for the larger

organi zations to be involved and to be able to afford dealing
with this kind of legislation.™

Number 1790

M5. MADSEN said her concern, as a task force nenber, was to make
as many options as possible open to her nenbers. She said there
are primarily three ways in which one can conply with the
regulations: join a co-op, join an unbrella organization called
the Marine Exchange that would provide services, or do it
oneself, an option that may be attractive to those who have a
fleet. She did not recall conpetition comng into the
di scussi on because the description indicates a certain size of
vessel, which may lead to a certain size of operation. She said
she thinks the task force was |ooking at making sure that there
was not just one nmethod of conpliance, that there was an
appropriate tinme schedule for conpliance, and that there were
reasonabl e expectati ons. She said she believes that the task
force acconplished all those goals.

Nunmber 1693

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if there is an existing unbrella
entity or if one would have to be devel oped.

M5. MADSEN inforned the conmttee that one is being developed in
the private sector right now It is called the Marine Exchange,
and several of the task force nenbers (herself included) are
currently on the board of directors of the new organization.
She expressed her desire to ensure that it is an option for

those vessels that would like to conply. She predicted that
vessels that do not operate in the state of Al aska on a regular
basis will need soneone to call to have "sonme of this paperwork
done" prior to their entering Alaska's waters; this unbrella
organi zation would do that. "I also think that the current co-
ops will provide spill response, but they don't provide your
i nci dent conmmand services, so you would either need to provide
those or contract out,"” she renarked. "I think this unbrella

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 18- January 25, 2001



organi zation that's being developed would have a list of nenu
itens that you could sign up for, depending on your specific
ci rcunstances, and the goal would be ... [to] keep those costs
| ow for the nenbers.”

Nunmber 1626
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked about the cost of the services.

M5. MADSEN replied, "That's the chicken and the egg." She
recalled that |ast year, costs had been a big concern, and that
she has been asked why she is not concerned about costs this
year. It is becom ng apparent that there will be enough vessels
involved to bring down the costs. She said she could not quote
an exact cost, but it probably would be less than the current
co-ops are now chargi ng associ ate nenbers.

Nunmber 1565

JEFF THOMPSON, Alaska Maritine Agencies, said he also is a
menber of the Board of the Marine Exchange and was co-chair with
Ms. Madsen of the task force's Contingency Plan Subconmttee.
Al t hough an industry is never enthusiastic about increased costs
of operation, it was obvious to the industry that extension of
oil-spill contingency planning to the nontank vessel conmunity
was inevitable. He echoed Ms. Madsen's recommendation that the
task force report "be kept whole and intact as it wends its way
through this |legislative process.” He enphasized that the
report should not be excerpted or diluted, and said he thought
any attenpt at that "would go against the intent and the
consensual spirit in which that docunent was produced.”

Nunmber 1468

CHAIR KOHRI NG expressed appreciation for the effort that went
into the docunent and said the |egislature wants to achieve the
sane goal, which is to assure safe operation. He asked if there
was an alternative to setting up 37 pages of regulations or if
it would be possible to put together sonething sinpler, such as
increasing fines so that operators have an incentive not to
spill [oil].

Nunber 1327

MR. THOWPSON referred to the task force process and said:

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -19- January 25, 2001



A lot of us were educated as to the intricacies of
international law when it cones to nmarine insurance
and how that plays out when there is an oil spill.
Along wth the commercial and business inplications,

there is federal law with which the industry nmnust
remai n consi stent. At this point, | don't see how
increasing fines or other possible punitive efforts
m ght address that, because it stens from the
liability of the responsible party, the owner of the
vessel .

CHAIR KOHRI NG noted the presence of Senator Pearce, sponsor of
SB 273 in the previous |egislative session.

Nunber 1202

JOE LEBEAU, Alaska Center for the Environnent, testified by
t el econf erence. He thanked the nmenbers of the task force,
saying that industry spent a trenendous anount of nobney com ng
together for the neetings and worked very hard to inprove the

capacity for spill response in Wstern Al aska. He noted that
al though he would |like to see nore regulation of the Al aska
Rail road pertaining to hazardous substances, he is nore than
happy the railroad is going to be regulated for oil spill

prevention and contingency planning.
Number 1115

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked if there was any force of |aw behind
the legislature's letter of intent that would affect the
adm nistration's inplenentation of regul ations.

BRECK TOSTEVI N, Assi st ant Attorney General, Envi r onnment al
Secti on, G vil Division (Anchorage), Depart ment of Law,
testified by teleconference. He explained that a letter of
intent expresses the intention of the legislature in adopting a
statute. When an admi nistrative agency adopts regulations, it
must do so in keeping with the intent of the |legislature and the
wordi ng of the statute. Yes, a letter of intent is an inportant
consideration in determning whether a regulation is consistent
with statute.

Number 1020
REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said his perspective, as a legislator, is

that the admnistration often exceeds the legislative intent
wi th regul ations. He asked if there would be a way to put the

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 20- January 25, 2001



letter of intent in the statute or say that the departnent may
only wite regulations based upon the recomrendations of the
task force. Wuld that have a greater force of |aw?

MR. TOSTEVIN answered that he didn't know if it would have any
greater force of |aw When the Departnent of Law reviews an
agency's regul ations, one of the things the regul ations attorney
does is determne whether the regulations are consistent wth
the statutes as adopted by the legislature. Once the
regul ations are in place, there are provisions for people to
chal I enge regul ati ons as being inconsistent with statute.

CHAI R KOHRI NG i nformed the commttee that the |egislative intent
to which Representative Ogan was referring was on page 38 of the
Task Force on Mdtorized Gl Transport Final Report distributed
at the past Tuesday's neeting.

Nunmber 0843

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN respectfully disagreed with M. Tostevin in
that letters of intent often aren't worth the paper they are
witten on. Acknow edgi ng that there are conscientious people
in the admnistration who do their best, he said he thinks they
have a different philosophy than the |egislature. Those who
work for the administration are not held accountable by voters
for their actions. He thinks those who wirk for the
adm ni strative agencies generally wite regulations that are too
ext ensi ve.

CHAI R KOHRI NG echoed Representative QOgan's concerns, saying it
had been his experience on the House Finance Conmttee that
letters of intent were often disregarded. He thought it m ght
be better to put the intent in the |egislation. He then noted
that he had spoken in error earlier about the length of the
bill. The task force report is 30-plus pages long; the
| egislation itself is just six pages.

Nunber 0715

BRI AN ROGERS, I nformation Insights, I nc., testifying by
tel econference, identified hinself as facilitator for the task
force report. He explained sone of the reasons the industry
woul d seek this type of regulation. Sections 1 and 2 of the
bill deal with liability Iimts and ensure that the sane kind of

references apply to both the tank and nontank vessels. The nost
i nportant provision from a private-sector standpoint is probably
Section 4, which I|imts the Iliability of any organization

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -21- January 25, 2001



providing incident nmanagenent team services or response plan
facilitator services. That is inportant to industry because
last year's law already subjects industry to financial
responsibility, and prior |law provides for fines for spillers.
It is to the industry's econom c advantage to try to avoid those
fines by not spilling oil. Limting the liability [creates an
incentive] for the industry to keep a spill from becom ng worse.

MR. ROCGERS continued, explaining that Section 5 of the bill
nmeans that the nontank community can rely on precedents that
have already been set with the tank comunity. He also said
that Section 6 makes it clear that vessels engaged in innocent
passage through Al aska waters are not required to conply wth
the nontank legislation (because requiring that is prohibited
under federal treaty). So, he concluded, there are sone
provisions that work to the advantage of the comunity that is
subject to fines and financial responsibility.

Nunber 0462

LARRY D ETRICH, Director, Division of Spill Prevention and
Response, Departnent of Environnental Conservation (DEC), cane
forward to testify. He said DEC can be put in a difficult
position when | aws are passed w thout the necessary research and
analysis, resulting in language that is not precise and speaks
in very broad terns that are hard to quantify in the rule
maki ng. How standards, |levels, and thresholds are set is
i ncredi bly inportant.

MR D ETRICH said he was skeptical | ast year when the
| egislature referred this subject to a task force, but it had

proven to be very beneficial. He said he had not previously
worked with such a diverse group and gotten to such a |evel of
detail. "It takes the nystery out of the regulation

pronul gati on when you can work with a group of people who have
been given a clear nmandate by the legislature and sit down and

work out those details ahead of tinme," he said. The [task
force] report is [DEC s] tenplate, and what it says is what he
intends to put into regulatory format. The departnent [ DEC]

participated in the [task force] process, which was a consensus
process through which participants agreed how to define the
i npl enentation. He said this is precisely the kind of direction
the agencies need in order to do the rule making. He expressed
appreciation to the legislature for creating the task force and
to the task force for providing the detail the agency needs.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -22- January 25, 2001



MR. DI ETRICH added that it could be helpful to have a "shepherd"
t hrough the rule-nmaking process. He suggested that a subgroup
of the task force oversee the rule making, which could reassure
t hose who are concer ned.

CHAIR KOHRI NG wel comed the suggestion. He also told M.
Dietrich that DEC is the agency that those in the legislature
"l ove to hate the nost."

TAPE 01-6, SIDE A

Nunber 0029

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said M. Dietrich had made a good point in
that legislators nmust be careful that the |anguage they put in a

bill gives clear direction to the executive branch concerning
| egi slative intent. Too often, especially late in the session
when legislation is noving quickly, the |anguage may not be as
clear [as it should be], he acknowl edged. "It's easy for us to

beat up the executive branch when we may not be doing a good job
of drafting,"” he added.

Nunmber 0093

MR. DI ETRICH acknow edged that there have been struggles over
the years over the whole regulation process and the oversight.
Bringing industry to the table prior to the drafting [of HB 55]
has been very successful. Therefore, he related his belief that
it is a good nodel for people to refer to in the future.

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked what is being done by other agencies and the

federal governnent. He wondered if the Coast Guard has
jurisdiction over ships transporting fuel products and
requi renents concerning spills. Chair Kohring explained that

his question was drawn from his concern "that we're not doing
sonething with this task force that is duplicating any other
effort, or doing sonething that we shouldn't be doing."

MR. DIETRICH assured him that the task force had |ooked into
t hat . The class of vessels affected is not currently regul ated
under the [federal] O Pollution Act contingency plan's cleanup
and response-planning provisions. Al though a bill was
introduced at the l|ast session of Congress to regulate nontank
vessels, it has not yet been enacted. He said there is a
dramatic difference between the proposed federal requirenents
and the package the task force has tried to tailor to Al aska's
uni que needs.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -23- January 25, 2001



Number 0313

CHAIR KOHRI NG noted that there was a third-of-a-mllion-dollar
annual expenditure involved, and he was glad it was not going to
conme fromthe general fund. This expenditure will be paid from
the G| Spill Contingency Fund, which is derived from a three-
cent-per-barrel tax on oil that flows through the Trans-Al aska

Pi pel i ne. The noney is used in a variety of prograns dealing
with oil spills and cleanup, including underground storage tank
remedi ati on. He wondered if passage of HB 55 m ght

significantly hanper the funding of the other prograns.

MR DI ETRICH called attention to information in the commttee

packets that included the official Departnment of Revenue
forecasts for revenue production from that pipeline tax through
the year 2010. He noted that a general decline in revenue is

expected due to the continuing depletion of major oil deposits.
Number 0516

CHAIR KOHRI NG voiced concern that taking out a third of a
mllion dollars a year would nmake it hard to engage in other
cl eanup activities in the state.

MR. DIETRICH said that had been taken into consideration in the
fiscal note by keeping the cost pared down to $141, 000 per year.

Nunmber 0565

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked the commttee to keep in mnd that if they
pass this bill, the Gl Spill Contingency Fund is going to "take
a hit" and result in nonies being taken out of the other areas,
not that it couldn't be nmade up, and perhaps that's an issue the
House Finance Conmittee could address. He infornmed the
commttee that he has drafted a meno to the House Finance
Commttee to alert them that if HB 55 is passed from this
commttee, they will need to address that issue.

Number 0565
CHAIR KOHRING recalled reading that there will be approximtely
700 ships affected by this program and asked if that nunber is

correct.

MR. DIETRICH said the best estimate is based on the nunber of
applications received to neet the financial responsibility

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 24- January 25, 2001



portion of SB 273, which took effect in Septenber. About 500
appl i cations, which together account for about 900 vessels, have
been received.

Nunmber 0716

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked what HB 55 neans in ternms of giving DEC
authority to pronulgate regulations. He also asked how the
| egi sl ature could be assured that [the resulting regulations]
are not going to end up "spinning a bit out of control"” and
resulting in sonething nore than the |egislature thought it was
bargaining for. He noted that Representative Ogan is working on
an anendnent to address that issue, and said [the draft
anendnent] will be shared with M. Detrich and the conmttee
before the next neeting. The anendnent includes the intent in
the legislation itself, rather than in a separate letter of
i ntent.

Number 0777

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH expressed concern about the anount of
time the chair is taking with HB 55, and said he would like to
see any anendnents shared with the task force in tinme for them
to have input.

CHAI R KOHRI NG assured Representative Kookesh that the task force
woul d receive any anendnents and have a chance to review them
He explained that he had received the draft amendnent just
before the neeting and only glanced at it. He said his support
is in concept only, and thus he expressed the need to read the
anmendnent's wording and think it through.

CHAIR KOHRING noted that the <conmittee 1is discussing a
substantial piece of legislation that has been in preparation
for a couple of years. "I don't think there's any need to rush
this process,” he said, noting that the commttee first heard HB
55 two days ago. He pointed out that he did not want to inpose
sonmething that is a detrinent to the shipping industry, despite
the fact that there seenms to be consensus. "I have to ask
nyself, "Wy are we being pressured to nove this thing so
qui ck?' That in itself has raised a bit of a red flag in ny
mnd," he remarked. He said as chair, he would prefer to take a
rat her slow approach and nmake certain that all are confortable
bef ore passing HB 55 out of committee.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH rem nded him "W are here because of
| egi slation that was passed |ast session [SB 273]. C It was

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -25- January 25, 2001



39 votes in favor of it in the House, and the Senate passed it

overwhel mngly, and that's why we're here. We're follow ng up
on that legislation.” He said he doesn't have "any dog in the
fight," but just wants to see sonething [enacted] that the

greater mnds of Al aska sat down and put together. The tine and
effort they put intoit is worth sonething, he enphasized.

CHAIR KOHRING said as a matter of respect to those who put so
much into [the task force report], the commttee should take
tinme to look at HB 55 carefully and understand it fully before
taking final action.

Number 0985

PAUL FUHS, Marine Technical Consultant to the task force, noted
t hat discussion keeps returning to the issue of why industry is
interested in expediting the passage of HB 55. He testified:

I f your concern is about the heavy hand of regulation
of governnent on business, you already did that | ast
year, and you all voted for it [SB 273], every single

one. So now ... the industry has conme back and said
"W need these tools, we need these |imts on
liability.... " It is a cost factor. Wt hout these

[limts], the co-ops couldn't form to provide these
services in a cost-effective way.

But beyond that, especially for the tranper vessels,
the spot-charter vessels that conme on a one-tine basis
to pick up iron ore, tinber, or fish, they just

physically couldn't operate with the bill you passed
| ast year without these ... response plan facilitator
servi ces, i ncident managenent team services,

unless a vessel agency or the Marine Exchange was
holding a generic contingency plan that they could
sign on to. They are not going to do that if sone
third party can come in and sue them for acting in
good faith to react to an oil spill wthout these
limtations of liability, and that's what this six-
page bill is.

It's not the requirements of heavy regulation of
industry. You already passed [that]. This is the way
industry can do it cost-effectively. That's why
you're seeing all the letters of support and all the
testi nony. So | hope that helps explain sone of the

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 26- January 25, 2001



urgency of the industry ... for the protections
[ provided by HB 55]....

CHAI R KOHRI NG announced that the next neeting would be a joint
one with the Senate.

[ HB 55 was hel d over.]
ADJ OQURNVENT

The neeting of the House Transportation Standing Conmittee
neeting was adjourned at 3:04 p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -27- January 25, 2001



